
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

HOUSTON DIVISION 

 

CONRHONE WALLACE   § 

      § 

V.      §           CIVIL ACTION NO. 4:20-cv-00159        

      §                                          JURY TRIAL 

      § 

ILLINOIS CENTRAL RAILROAD   § 

COMPANY     § 

 

 

PLAINTIFF’S ORIGINAL COMPLAINT  

 

TO THE HONORABLE DISTRICT JUDGE: 

 

 Comes Now CONRHONE WALLACE, Plaintiff herein, complaining of Defendant Illinois Central 

Railroad Company and files this Plaintiff’s Original Complaint. 

I. PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. Plaintiff CONRHONE WALLACE (“Plaintiff” or “Mr. Wallace”) is currently a citizen and resident of 

Harris County, Texas.  Mr. Wallace is a former employee of Defendant and was terminated by 

Defendant in April 2019. 

2. Defendant ILLINOIS CENTRAL RAILROAD COMPANY (“Defendant” or “Illinois Central”) is a 

foreign for-profit corporation doing business in Geismer, Louisiana and Baton Rouge, Louisiana.  

Defendant may be served with citation by serving its registered agent: CSC-Lawyers Incorporating 

Service Company, 211 E. 7th Street, Ste. 620, Austin, TX 78701-4234. A request for waiver of service 

is being sent to Defendant. 

3. This court has jurisdiction to hear the merits of Plaintiff’s claims due to the federal question raised 

pursuant to the Americans With Disabilities Act, as amended (“the ADA”), and the Family Medical 

Leave Act (“FMLA”), found at 29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 et. seq. Venue is proper in this district because the 

unlawful employment practice is alleged to have been committed this district  and/or it is believed the 

employment records relevant to such practice are maintained and administered in this district and/or 
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the aggrieved person would have worked in this district but for the alleged unlawful employment 

practice.” 42 U.S.C. § 2000e–5(f)(3). 

II.FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

4. Plaintiff was employed by Defendant as a conductor, until his termination on or about April 17, 2019.  

Overall, Plaintiff was employed by Defendant full time for almost nine years, from October 2010 until 

April 2019. 

5. Prior to Plaintiff’s termination by Defendant,  he worked for Defendant for more than twelve (12) 

months, and for more than 1250 hours during that twelve-month period. Thus, Plaintiff was covered by 

the Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”). 

6. Defendant has employed, and continues to employ, fifty or more persons at, or within a seventy-five 

(75) mile radius of the location where Plaintiff worked.  In addition, Defendant has more than 500 

employees. Thus, Defendant was covered by the FMLA. 

7. Plaintiff had not taken twelve (12) weeks of off work for a serious health condition, or otherwise, during 

the twelve-month period prior to (a) the onset of his serious health condition, or (b) the time of his 

termination. Thus, Plaintiff was covered by the FMLA. 

8. On or about December 2011, Plaintiff began to see his medical provider.  Plaintiff was diagnosed with 

a serious heart and health condition which required regular medical treatment, care, and monitoring by 

his medical provider.  He regularly visits a cardiologist for his heart condition and the condition 

constitutes a disability under the statutes. 

9. Also in 2011, Plaintiff reported his medical condition to Defendant’s human resources department and 

subsequently requested intermittent FMLA to accommodate his disability and medical condition, which 

went without incident.  

10. In January 2018, Plaintiff applied for the position of Trainmaster.  Despite being qualified for the 

position, Defendant refused to promote Plaintiff to Trainmaster in March 2019.   

11. Defendant stated to Plaintiff that the reason he was not promoted was because of his disability and 

FMLA status. 
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12. Then, on or about March 5, 2019, Defendant asked Plaintiff to complete FMLA re-certification 

paperwork. 

13. Plaintiff submitted the requested paperwork to his supervisor, Rolando Jimenez, on or about March 12, 

2019.   

14. On or about March 12, 2019, Defendant informed Plaintiff he was being investigated for allegedly 

providing false information regarding his FMLA certification.  Plaintiff had been arrested in 2017.  He 

informed his supervisor and was told by the supervisor to simply report the absence as FMLA leave, 

which he did.  In March 2019, the Defendant went back and looked at all prior submissions and 

determined Plaintiff had previously submitted false documentation; this all occurred after Plaintiff was 

not promoted and complained that he was told that he would not be considered because of the FMLA 

leave and his disability. 

15. On or about April 25, 2019, Defendant terminated Plaintiff.   

16. The termination interfered with Plaintiff’s rights under the FMLA and constituted unlawful 

discrimination and retaliation under the FMLA and ADA based on his condition, leave and complaints 

about discrimination based on his FMLA and ADA claims. 

III.CAUSES OF ACTION 

RETALIATION BASED ON OPPOSITION AND/OR PARTICIPATION IN AN EEO PROCESS 

17. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 16 as if fully 

stated herein. 

18. Plaintiff has satisfied all jurisdictional prerequisites in connection with his claim under the ADA. 

19. Plaintiff reported his condition and took ADA and FMLA related leave.  He also complained about the 

failure to consider him for the promotion and being told he would not be considered because of his 

FMLA and ADA status.   

20. While employed with Defendant, Plaintiff was denied promotions and ultimately terminated because 

of Plaintiff’s opposition and/or participation in prior EEO processes and ADA and FMLA status.   
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DISCRIMINATION, FAILURE TO ACCOMMODATE, AND RETALIATION BASED ON 

DISABILITY UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, AS AMENDED 
 

21. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 16 as if fully 

stated herein. 

22. Plaintiff has satisfied all jurisdictional prerequisites in connection with his claim under the Americans 

with Disabilities Act, As Amended, (“ADA”). The ADA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12102 et seq., prohibits 

discrimination in employment against a qualified individual on the basis of his disability. 

23. Defendant’s actions, as described herein, constitute unlawful discrimination on the basis of Plaintiff’s 

disability and retaliation in violation of the ADA.   

24. Plaintiff has a physical impairment and/or disability that substantially limits a major life activity.   

25. Plaintiff was qualified for his position and was able to perform the essential functions of his job with a 

reasonable accommodation of intermittent, short-term medical leave.   

26. Defendant failed to promote Plaintiff due to his FMLA and ADA status.  Defendant also falsely accused 

Plaintiff of falsifying his medical documents and performed an investigation in April 2019, even though 

he had been instructed to do so by his supervisor. 

27. The investigation of Plaintiff’s medical records and paperwork related to his FMLA and ADA was 

designed to harass and constitutes unlawful pretext. 

28. Defendant refused to promote Plaintiff and stated it was due to his medical condition.  Defendant 

suspended Plaintiff in April 2019 and ultimately terminated him. 

FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT VIOLATION 

29. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 16 as if fully 

stated herein. 

30. Plaintiff has satisfied all jurisdictional prerequisites in connection with his claim under the Family 

Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”), 29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 et. seq.  

Defendant is an “employer” as defined by the FMLA in 29 U.S.C. § 2611(4). 
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31. During the time that Plaintiff was employed by Defendant, he was an “eligible employee” as defined 

by the FMLA in 29 U.S.C. § 2611(2). 

32. While Plaintiff was employed by Defendant, Plaintiff had an illness that can be defined as a “serious 

health condition” under the FMLA as outlined in 29 U.S.C. § 2611(11). 

33. Plaintiff was entitled to medical leave for his serious health condition as provided for in the FMLA (in 

29 U.S.C. § 2612(a)(1)(C)). 

34. After requesting and taking leave related to his health condition using medical leave allowed under the 

FMLA (as discussed in 29 U.S.C. § 2612(a)(1)), Defendant harassed and discriminated and retaliated 

against Plaintiff during his leave and eventually terminated Plaintiff’s employment, in part, for taking 

or requesting this medical leave to care for his serious health condition. 

35. Defendant terminated Plaintiff’s employment for seeking designation and/or leave under FMLA,  

and/or the time he was forced to take off work to care for his serious health condition, which violates 

the protections of the FMLA as outlined in  29 U.S.C. § 2615(a).   

36. As a result of Defendant’s violations of the FMLA, Plaintiff has suffered actual damages in the form 

of lost wages, bonuses and benefits (past and future), in an amount that has not yet been fully 

established, but which will be provided at time of trial. 

37. As a result of this willful violation of the FMLA, Plaintiff requests that he be awarded all damages, to 

which he is entitled, as outlined in 29 U.S.C. § 2617, including, but not limited to, lost wages, salary, 

employee benefits, and any other compensation denied or lost as a result of the violation, plus interest.  

In addition, Plaintiff requests liquidated damages equal to the amount of reimbursable compensation 

described above.  Plaintiff also requests any additional equitable relief to which he is entitled, including 

reinstatement. 

38. Plaintiff also requests reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs. 

39. Whenever in this petition it is alleged that the Defendant did any act or thing, it is meant that 

Defendant’s officers, agents, servants, employees or representatives did such act or thing and that at 

the time such act or thing was done, it was done with the full authorization or ratification of or by 
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Defendant and was done in the normal and routine course and scope of employment of Defendant’s 

officers, agents, servants, employees or representatives.  

IV.JURY DEMAND 

 Plaintiff requests trial by jury on all claims. 

V. PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 Wherefore, Plaintiff requests that on final trial, Plaintiff have judgment against Defendant as 

follows: 

1. Judgment against Defendant for Plaintiff’s actual damages, including lost wages, bonuses, salary 

and benefits (both back pay and front pay), amount to be determined; 

 

2. Judgment against Defendant for liquidated damages for the maximum amount allowed by law, 

including doubling of all back pay awarded; 

 

3. An order that Defendant take such other and further actions as may be necessary to redress 

Defendant’s violation of the FMLA, including reinstatement; 

 

4. Pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the maximum amount allowed by law; 

 

5. Costs of suit, including expert’s fees and attorney’s fees; 

 

6. The award of such other and further relief, both at law and in equity, including injunctive relief and 

reinstatement, to which Plaintiff may be justly entitled. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

             BY /s/ Adam Poncio 

PONCIO LAW OFFICES  

A Professional Corporation 

5410 Fredericksburg Road, Suite 109 

San Antonio, Texas  78229-3550 

 Telephone: (210) 212-7979 

 Facsimile: (210) 212-5880 

   

ADAM PONCIO 

STATE BAR NO. 16109800 

Southern District ID. No. 194847 

salaw@msn.com  

ALAN BRAUN 

STATE BAR NO. 24054488 

abraun@ponciolaw.com  

LORNA R. GRIFFIN 

STATE BAR NO. 24109947 

lgriffin@ponciolaw.com  

 

DK Law, PLLC 

2245 Texas Drive, Ste. 300 

Sugar Land, TX 77479 

Phone (281) 402-8856 

Fax (281) 408-4847  

 

 DARIUS  KHOSRAVIAN 

 STATE BAR NO. 24085414 

 darius@thedklawfirm.com  

 

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF 
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